
Griswold Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting   
Minutes  August 20, 2014  Page 1 
 

 
 
 
GRISWOLD ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING   
MINUTES  AUGUST 20, 2014  GRISWOLD TOWN HALL 

I. REGULAR MEETING (7:00 P.M.) 

1. Call to Order 

Chairman Thomas Giard, Jr. called this regular meeting of the Griswold Economic Development Commission to 
order at 7:00 p.m. 

2. Roll Call 

Present:  Chairman Thomas Giard,  Jr., Paul Lach, Christopher Goodenough, Town Planner Mario  J. Tristany, 
and Recording Secretary Donna Szall 

Absent:  Charlotte Geer  

Also present:   Kevin Skulczyck, First Selectman, Nancy      and Jim Barney. 

3. Determination of Quorum 

T. Giard stated that there was a quorum for this regular meeting of the Economic Development Commission. 

4. Approval of Minutes 

A. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting of July 16, 2014 

T. Giard asked for any corrections or omissions.   
MOTION: P. Lach moved to approve the minutes. C. Goodenough seconded the motion.  All were in favor. The 
motion was carried. 

5. Public Comment 

T. Giard asked  if  there was anyone  in  the audience who would  like  to make public comment.   He closed  the 
public comment.  

6. Matters Presented for Consideration 

A. Discussion and update of a Town of Griswold Commercial Small Business Revolving loan fund. 

T. Giard stated that the fund was discussed at the Selectman's Round Table meeting.  He stated that the NCDC 
representative gave a presentation that their revolving  loan fund was managed by Eastern Savings Bank about 
two weeks ago about their fund that they stated and they gave us that information.  

T. Giard stated  that  the  long  term goal was  to discuss  this  revolving  loan  fund at a BOS meeting  in Executive 
Session for discussion to iron out details; it will be formally discussed and go out for an RFP for a bank to manage 
this revolving  loan fund and handle the money..     P. Lach stated that  it was Eastern Bank, Jewett City Savings, 
and Putnam bank.   T. Giard  stated  that  there were  three  local banks at  the Round Table meeting  today.   He 
explained that an RFP will be noticed in the newspaper. 



Griswold Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting   
Minutes  August 20, 2014  Page 2 
 

T. Giard explained that UCFS is moving closer to acquiring the town owned parcel on East Main Street.  They and 
the  town have had  the property  appraised;  it will be  in  the neighborhood of  $225  K  to $275  .      There was 
discussion of this matter. 

T. Giard  stated  that  there  are  180  businesses  in  town  that may  be  interested  in  the  revolving  loan  fund  to 
expand their businesses that don't have the capital.  He stated that it will be September before it is discussed by 
the BOS. C. Goodenough asked what will be the starter for the loan or is it just from the sale of land.   T. Giard 
explained he didn't the town getting money any other way; the sale of the East Main Street property and other 
properties and will put the properties on the tax rolls.  There was discussion of this matter including that UCFS 
will be paying building fees but are tax exempt. 

B. Discussion and update of STEAP grant downtown streetscape improvements 

T. Giard asked M. Tristany to give an update on the STEAP grants.   M. Tristany stated that he received a  letter 
from OPM that the 2014 STEAP grant was not approved.  He stated that the 2015 STEAP grant has been released 
and is due on November 28, 2014 with awards by January 30, 2015. 

 M. Tristany explained that because the town applied for the MSIF grants that was filed. He explained that the 
2014 STEAP grant was to buy the balance of the  lighting fixtures, the  lighting equipment and the wires for the 
conduits, the banner poles, banner design and banners.   

C. Discussion and update of MSIF grant  

M. Tristany explained that the MSIF grant was to focus on façade improvements, surveillance cameras on Main 
Street.  He stated that it was nearly completed when we learned that we were not in line for the 2014 STEAP . So 
the MSIF  grant was  rewritten  for  the  lighting  funding.  He  stated  that  it was  learned  that  there  is  a  good 
possibility for being awarded the MSIF grant and that $74K for some façade  improvements and that  letters of 
interest were received by the owners of the Finn Block and the Arremony Building. M. Tristany stated that MSIF 
grant will  be  awarded  in  September  and  that  there was  a  very  good  chance  that  the  town will  receive  this 
funding which will be used to complete the period lighting on Main Street.  

He stated that Prime Electric will begin installing the lamp pole bases for the light poles; then they will install the 
conduit work for the wiring in Main Street on August 24, 2014. It will be covered and the State will eventually be 
paving the entire Main Street. 

M. Tristany asked the EDC to think about what Main Street project they would  like to concentrate on next for 
the 2015 STEAP grant application.  He stated that there are no guarantees but if you don't submit, you won't get 
funded.  T. Giard stated that along with the STEAP grant town is looking into the Federal Urban Action grants for 
next year and that those grants do not have a monetary cap.   He stated that all the STEAP wards that have a 
$500 k cap must be utilized before applying for the Federal Urban Action grants awards are unlimited having no 
cap.  There was discussion of this matter including that November elections having an impact on awards.  

T. Giard stated for the record that First Selectman Kevin Skulczyck was present at 7:15 p.m. 

T. Giard stated that MSIF grant for $400 K of which $100 K for facades may be awarded  in September but the 
town has not heard anything from the State to date. The commission needs to think about spending this money 
for  addition Main  Street  projects.    C.  Goodenough  asked  if  the  utility  poles will  be  removed.   M.  Tristany 
explained at the lamps will be removed from the utility poles but the utility poles will remain. He stated that the 
period lighting which is at pedestrian scale will detract from the utility poles that will not be noticed. 

He  stated  that  the plan  incorporated  street  trees which  can be  incorporated with  the  façade work. T. Giard 
stated that concrete ideas are needed by the September meeting. 

K. Skulczyck explained that the Urban Action funding has been in existing since 1978 and will be there forever.  
K. Skulczyck stated that someone with qualifications of a grant writer such as Larry Wagner will be needed for 
the federal grants which have no cap for town wide projects.  C. Goodenough asked if those funds could be used 



Griswold Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting   
Minutes  August 20, 2014  Page 3 
 

for remediation. K. Skulczyck stated that he did not know if it could be used for Brownfield's projects. He stated 
that  funds are based  too on whether  there  is  jobs  creation.   T. Giard  stated  that  there are Brownfield  funds 
available that are separate from Urban Action funds.  He stated that EDC is the sponsor of such projects such as 
the redesign of the parking area of the town hall. 

D. Discussion and update of EDC Griswold Brochure process 

T. Giard stated that the town was looking as a number of types of brochures that will be created by a Griswold 
high  school  intern who has  skills with Microsoft Publisher and other  software.   He  stated  that  there are  two 
brochures that speak to  land available and one speaks to services  in the town. T. Giard asked  if the  intern was 
working with D. Szall at all.  M. Tristany stated that he gave the intern a brochure that he got from West Monroe 
and asked  for  something along  this  style. M. T  stated  that  the brochures he was working on with  the  intern 
would be for  local businesses buying blocks of space and maps of where they are  located.   He will be meeting 
with the intern to work on the design as the West Monroe brochure. T. Giard suggested that businesses can be 
cycled through quarterly or semi annually. There was discussion of this matter. 

D. Szall reminded the commission members that the brochure designed by Ganette for the MDP was to attract 
new business developers who will create  jobs for the town. T. Giard stated that more than one brochure was 
needed and that one brochure does not fit all purposes. 

7. Correspondence 

A. ICMA HR & A Advisors Economic Development questionnaire. 

T. Giard  asked  if  anyone  knew  anything  about  this  company. M.  Tristany  stated  that  ICMA may be  the City 
Managers Association.  P. Lach stated that only one brochure should be filled out.  There was discussion of this 
matter that more information will be obtained about this group. 

B. Connecticut Federation of Planning and Zoning Agencies Quarterly Newsletter, Summer 2014, Volume 
VIII, Issue 3 

T. Giard stated that continue to give us copies of this newsletter. 

8. Other Matters 

T. Giard asked about the Sheldon Road dedication.  K. Skulczyck stated that the official opening is Saturday after 
eight  years  of  preparing  the  site  though  grants  and  donations  that was  given  to  the  town  by  the  State  of 
Connecticut.  There was discussion of this matter including food venues. 

T. Giard stated  that  the Economic Development Commission  is putting  in a  text amendment  to  the  Industrial 
Zone of the town zoning regulations that will allow UCFS to build their medical facility at 226 East Main Street 
that they will purchase from the town.  T. Giard asked D. Szall to let the commission know on the Planning and 
Zoning Agenda on September 8, 2014 at 7 and the commission will set a public hearing for the following month. 
There was discussion of this matter. 

T. Giard asked for a motion to send this text amendment to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
MOTION: P. Lach moved to put forward text amendments to Section 9 Industrial Zone for new text amendments 
Section 9.4.5 and 9.4.6. C. Goodenough seconded the motion.  All were in favor. The motion was carried.  

T. Giard asked about when the Public Health and Safety Committee meets.  P. Lach stated that they will meet in 
September  on  the  September  15  at  6:30  in  the  Selectmens  Conference  Room.  There was  discussion  of  this 
matter including that T. Giard will send the committee a letter to be put on the agenda. 

T. Giard asked M. Tristany how long the Main Street conduit work will be done.   M. Tristany stated that it would 
be about  two weeks.   There was discussion of  this matter  including  that  the  Slater Avenue and Main  Street 
paving and milling will be done by the CTDOT sometime in 2015 or 2016. 



Griswold Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting   
Minutes  August 20, 2014  Page 4 
 

T. Giard stated that C. Goodenough is still looking for his list. K. Skulczyck stated that he has it upstairs waiting 
for him.  

K. Skulczyck stated that some businesses were asking about what style of sign to use to tie into the Main Street 
Plan.   He asked  for  the commission  to come up with a period  that  the businesses on Main Street can use  for 
their  signs  and  facades.      T. Giard  stated  that  they  can  use  the  period  lighting  as  an  example. M.  Tristany 
suggested hiring Jamie Caporaso who did the logo to design signs. There was discussion of this matter.  

Nancy Roberts of UCFS asked what surveying on Slater Avenue.  K. Skulczyck stated that the Jewett City Water 
Company is surveying to upgrade the water pipe to 12 inch pipe up Slater Avenue to Route 164 in the spring.  T. 
Giard stated that UA monies could be used to continue up Route 164. There was discussion of this matter.  

9. Adjournment 

T. Giard asked for a motion to adjourn. 
MOTION:    C. Goodenough moved  to  adjourn.  P.  Lach  seconded  the motion. All were  in  favor.  The meeting 
adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  Donna M. Szall 
  Recording Secretary 


